
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE AGENDA 

Town Hall Council Chambers July 17, 2017 at 6:00pm 
30 South Main Street  Town Council Monthly Meeting 
Weaverville, N.C. 28787 

1. Call to Order............................................................................................................................ Mayor Sherrill 

2. Approval / Adjustments to the Agenda................................................................................. Mayor Sherrill 

3. Approval of Minutes................................................................................................................ 
A. June 1, 2017 Town Council Budget Workshop Minutes
B. June 19, 2017 Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes

Mayor Sherrill 

4. Employee Recognition............................................................................................................. Town Manager 

4. General Public Comments

5. Consent Agenda....................................................................................................................... 
Motion to approve the consent agenda 

Mayor Sherrill 

A. Road Closure Ordinances for: Art in Autumn, North Buncombe Homecoming Parade and
Christmas Parade
Town Manager recommends approval of these road closure ordinances.

B. Quarterly Departmental Reports
Quarterly reports are for information only.

C. Amended Tax Release and Refund
Tax Collector recommends approval of an amendment to the tax release and refund approved June 2017

D. Receipt of Certificate of Sufficiency of Shakamar Investment Group, LLC, Annexation Petition
& Setting Public Hearing on Annexation and Initial Zoning Request of R-2
Town Manager recommends scheduling a public hearing for August 21, 2017 at 6pm.

6. Discussion & Action Items:

A. NCLM Report on Comprehensive Review of Weaverville Police Department.............................. Tom Anderson 
B. Ordinance Authorized by the ‘Brunch Bill’....................................................................................... Town Manager 
C. Monticello Commons CZD Application............................................................................................ Town Planner 
D. Set Public Hearing and Announce Community Info/Workshop Dates for Table of Uses............... Town Planner 
E. Eller Cove Watershed Conservation Easement Transfer................................................................... Town Manager 

7. Town Manager's Report ...........................................................................................................  Town Manager

8. Closed Session
• N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(3) to consult with the Town's attorney;
• N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(5) to establish or instruct Town staff concerning the position to

be taken by the Town on the acquisition of real property and the amount of compensation and
other material terms of an employment contract or proposed contract;

• N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(6) to consider the qualifications, competence, performance,
character, fitness, conditions of appointment, or conditions of employment of public officer or
employee.

9. Adjournment.................................................................................................................................... Mayor Sherrill 

1



Page 1 of 3 June 1, 2017 
Town Council Budget Workshop Minutes 

            MINUTES 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA THURSDAY, JUNE 1, 2017 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met on Thursday, June 1, 2017, at 5:30 p.m. in the Training 
Room within Weaverville Fire Department at 3 Monticello Road, Weaverville, North Carolina. 

Council members present were: Mayor Dottie Sherrill, Vice Mayor/Councilman John Penley, Councilman Doug 
Jackson, Councilman Doug Dearth, and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons. Councilman Andrew Nagle was 
absent.  

Staff present were: Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake, Police Chief Greg Stephens, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Town 
Planner James Eller and Public Works Director Tony Laughter. 

1. Call to Order
Mayor Sherrill called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

2. Action Items
Town Manager requests a vote to approve the following items as they are necessary for approval within the FY
2017-2018 Budget.

• Resolution Abolishing the Town’s Capital Reserve Fund
• Resolution Concerning Eller Cove Property
• Legal Services Contract
• Revisions to Personnel Policy regarding Retiree Medical Insurance & Domestic Partnership

Insurance

Councilman Penley moved for the approval of the following items within the FY 2017-2018 Budget. Councilman 
Jackson seconded the motion and all voted unanimously to approve all action items requested. 

3. Overview of Budget Revisions

• Review of Power Point on Revised Budget

Town Manager Selena Coffey gave a brief review of the revisions applied on the new Revised Budget. She 
mentioned that under the Revised Budget the new tax rate would be 0.3840 cents and the General Fund 
operational budget will increase $154,670 over the original proposed budget. Coffey reiterated that the budget 
process is a ‘moving target’, a dynamic process. Therefore some figures have changed due to her having 
received additional or updated information. Some revisions that increased the General Fund operational budget 
were additions to expenses for personnel health insurance, election fees, utility franchise tax, and website and 
technology. The revisions that lowered the budget were decreases in tax and sales tax revenue, cut cost to a 
Public Works vehicle, revised legal services expenses and cut the manager proposed Council workshop stipend. 
Town Manager Selena Coffey noted that these revisions culminated in the appropriation of Fund Balance in the 
amount of $323,600. The Appropriated Fund Balance will primarily be used to catch up on previously 

2



Page 2 of 3 June 1, 2017 
Town Council Budget Workshop Minutes 

postponed equipment such as replacement vehicles for the Fire, Police, and Public Works Departments, a 
previously postponed brush chipper, safety padding for outdoor exercise equipment at Lake Louise, contingency 
funding for Lake Louise Community Center improvements, Greenways match funding and acoustic panels for 
community room at Town Hall.  The PowerPoint from June 1, 2017 Budget Workshop is attached.  

• Capital Improvement Program Thresholds

Town Manager Selena Coffey discussed the proposed Capital Improvements Plan. She mentioned that the 
purpose of the Town of Weaverville CIP is to forecast and match projected revenues and capital needs over a 
three-year period. This is critical for the Town to identify major needs, project subsequent revenue and financial 
capacity, establish priorities and develop project schedules to better serve the Town’s residents. The Town of 
Weaverville defines capital as any expenditure of significant value that recurs irregularly and results in the 
acquisition of a fixed asset. With this basis established, the Town has adopted the following capital thresholds: 
Assets with a useful life greater than two years and assets with a cost of $5,000 or greater. The Town established 
the following categories for planning for the purchase of capital equipment or making capital improvements 
given the aforementioned thresholds: Vehicles, Capital Outlay, Street Maintenance and Capital Improvements. 
The proposed Capital Improvements Plan from the June 1, 2017 Budget Workshop is attached.  

• Question and Answer regarding Revisions

Town Manager Selena Coffey answered questions Town Council had about the new revisions to the budget. 

Councilman Jackson asked why sales tax revenue was decreasing by $52,643. Ms. Coffey stated that the Senate 
Bill 126 is the reason for this decrease, it is the adjustment of funds by the counties to the municipalities. Overall 
the state is allocating more money to poorer counties. 
Councilman Fitzsimmons asked if we were cutting the part time firefighters down to 3 since on the last budget 
we had planned for 6 part time firefighters. Town Manager Selena Coffey said that the proposed did not include 
the 3 firefighters, but in anticipation of the grant award, she had included those 3 positions. She noted that, if we 
receive the grant then we will do a budget amendment so the Town’s portion will decrease. After the 
amendment, the money will go back into the fund balance at the end of the year. 
Councilman Dearth asked if the relief pay for 3 firefighters was going to come out of Fund balance and if the 
$107,468 would be lowered if we receive the grant?  Ms. Coffey stated that this expense will be coming out of 
the operating budget and the balance will be lower if we receive the grant.   

4. Overview of Fee Schedule

Town Manager Selena Coffey gave an overview of the proposed Fee Schedule. She stated that the group of fees 
highlighted in yellow have historically been charged, but haven’t been included in the fee schedule before. 
These fees are for online water and property tax payments. The next group of fees highlighted in green are new 
fees to be approved by Town Council. These fees are for Zoning Permits, Beer and wine privilege licenses, and 
miscellaneous Planning and Coding Enforcement fees for the Planning and Zoning Department. As well as 
public records requests copying charges and electronic and online payments. As of now, staff is currently 
developing a method for encouraging more online payments and a method for passing along surcharges on 
electronic payments received in Town Hall. This would mean adding 2.75% for all water or property bills paid 
electronically in person. The last group of fees highlighted in blue are changes to the current fees. These fees 
will include a 2% increase in water rates as suggested by the McGill study, sign permits, and water tap and fire 
line connection charges.  Town Manager Selena Coffey noted that this Fee Schedule is mainly administrative, 

3



 

 
Page 3 of 3  June 1, 2017  
  Town Council Budget Workshop Minutes 
 

water, and planning and zoning fees. This Fee Schedule is a very important document that by law, will have to 
be published and posted online. She recommends adopting this Fee Schedule when the Budget Ordinance is 
adopted. The proposed Fee Schedule from June 1, 2017 Budget Workshop is attached. 
 
The motion was made by Councilman Penley to direct the Town Manager to proceed with preparation of the 
Budget Ordinance, which incorporates the Fee Schedule and the revisions to the proposed budget as presented 
during the meeting. Councilman Jackson seconded the motion and all unanimously approved. 
 
5.   Adjournment 
Councilman Dearth made the motion to adjourn; Councilman Penley seconded and all voted to adjourn the 
Council’s meeting at 6:10 p.m. 
 

__________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

 

4



 

 
Page 1 of 4  June 19, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

            MINUTES 

 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA MONDAY, JUNE 19, 2017 

 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regular monthly meeting on Monday, June 19, 2017, 
at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North 
Carolina. 

Council members present were: Mayor Dottie Sherrill, Vice Mayor/Councilman John Penley, Councilman Doug 
Jackson, Councilman Doug Dearth, Councilman Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons.  

Staff present were: Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake, Police Chief Greg Stephens, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Finance Officer 
Tonya Dozier and Public Works Director Tony Laughter. 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Sherrill called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 
Councilman Dearth made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Councilman Penley seconded 
and all voted in favor of the motion. 
 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Councilman Penley made the motion to approve the minutes from May 9, 2017 Town Council Budget 
Workshop and May 15, 2017 Town Council Meeting as presented. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded 
the motion and all voted in favor on the approval of the minutes. 
 

4. General Public Comment 
Public comments were received as follows:  
 
Donna Bollinger commented on the delivery of the Town of Weaverville Focus electronic newsletter 
not being mailed out in a timely fashion, noting that she missed the scheduled Budget Workshop on 
June 1 because she didn’t receive her mailed hard copy of the electronic newsletter until June 9. She 
recommends that the Town of Weaverville make this more of a priority by trying to mail the newsletter 
out earlier and inform USPS that it is for a Weaverville address so it doesn’t get distributed through 
Greenville.  
 
Jan Lawrence, member of the Dry Ridge Museum board, commented on the letter the Dry Ridge 
Museum received from Buncombe County stating they needed to depart their space at the library as of 
December 31, 2017.  She handed out a booklet on the History of the Dry Ridge Museum to the members 
of Town Council, which showed that the museum began its formation in 1981 and officially opened in 
December of 1983.  She noted that the museum was operated solely by the Board members and with 
grants they received. They never asked for help but did receive $300 from Town Council in 1988. She is 
asking the Town of Weaverville to help with obtaining a space and utilities to keep the museum in. 
They have received offers from other Towns but want to stay in Weaverville.  

5



 

 
Page 2 of 4  June 19, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

 
Louis Accornero, 50 Highland Pointe Drive, thanked the Town Council for the tough decisions they 
have to make, even when they are unpleasant. He considers it a privilege to play a part in the 
development of Weaverville and is excited to see how Weaverville works. He says that from the book, 
Images of American Weaverville, it reads that Mark Weaver donated the land that is Weaverville. He is 
asking Town Council to consider giving back so that the museum can stay in Weaverville.   
 

5. Consent Agenda 
Motion to approve the consent agenda. 
A. Monthly Tax Report 

Town Manager recommends approval of report. 
B. Tax Releases and Refunds 

Town Tax Collector request approval of these tax releases and refunds. 
C. Set Filing Fee for Municipal Elections 

Approval of resolution setting municipal election filing fee is requested. 
D. Budget Amendment 

Approval of a budget amendment to move $32,000 from Recreation to Sanitation is requested 
E. Annexation Petition/Initial Zoning-Shakamar Investment Group-8 Acres on Reems Creek Rd 

Adoption of the attached resolution with direction to Town Clerk and Planning & Zoning is 
requested 

F. Request to Declare Surplus Property and Approval Disposition Methods – Fire Department 
Town Manager recommends disposition of surplus personal property as indicted 

 
Councilman Dearth moved for the approval of the consent agenda. Councilman Penley seconded the 
motion and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the consent agenda. 
 

6. Discussion and Action Items 
 
A. Adoption of FY2017-2018 Budget Ordinance and Fee Schedule 

Mayor Dottie Sherrill commented that Town Council had several Budget Workshops from February 
through June for the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Budget and the Public Hearing was held on May 15, 2017.  

The Fiscal Year 2017-2017 Budget Ordinance and Fee schedule are attached.  

Councilman Jackson made a motion to adopt the FY 2017-2018 Budget Ordinance and Fee Schedule. 
Councilman Penley seconded the motion. The motion passed by a majority vote of Council. Councilman 
Nagle voted against the motion. Motion carries 4-1.  

B. ASPCA Waterline Extension Acceptance and Staff Level Approval 

Public Works Director Tony Laughter mentioned that the American Society for the Prevention of 
Cruelty to Animals (ASPCA) project has progressed such that the Town acceptance criteria for the 
waterline, vault and vault drain will be completed within the next few weeks. Therefore, he is requesting 
that Town Council go ahead and accept the waterline extension and related improvements into the 
Town’s water system subject to staff level approval by the Public Works Director, Town Manager, and 
Town Attorney. Also, the Public Works Director urges Town Council to set an improvement defects 
guaranty at $8,000 to cover any defects that might be discovered within three years of our acceptance. 

6



 

 
Page 3 of 4  June 19, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

Councilman Penley made a motion to pass the waterline extension and related improvements into the 
Town’s water system subject to staff level approval, and set an improvement defects guaranty amount at 
$8,000. Councilman Dearth seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. 

C. Creekside Phase III Waterline Extension Acceptance and Staff Level Approval 

Public Works Director Tony Laughter discussed that the Creekside Phase III has progressed such that 
the Town acceptance criteria for the waterline will be completed within the next few weeks. Therefore, 
he is requesting that Town Council go ahead and accept the waterline extension and related 
improvements into the Town’s water system subject to staff level approval by the Public Works 
Director, Town Manager, and Town Attorney. Also, the Public Works Director urges Town Council to 
set an improvement defects guaranty at $4,000 to cover any defects that might be discovered within 
three years of our acceptance. 

Councilman Jackson made a motion to pass the waterline extension and related improvements into the 
Town’s water system subject to staff level approval, and set an improvement defects guaranty amount at 
$4,000. Councilman Penley seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. 

D. Board Appointments – Zoning Board of Adjustments 

Mayor Dottie Sherrill recommends that Roger Parkin be appointed to the unexpired term for the regular 
seat previously held by Al Root. Mr. Parkin has been an active member of the Board even though he is 
currently serving as an alternate member, has requested to be considered for a regular seat.  

Councilman Dearth made a motion to appoint Roger Parkin to the Zoning Board of Adjustment as a 
regular member for the unexpired term of the seat previously held by Al Root. Councilman Fitzsimmons 
seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. 

E. 44 Central Avenue – Subdivision – Approval of Concept and Preliminary Plan 

Town Planner James Eller discussed that the Fire Marshall, Public Works Director and him have 
reviewed the Major Subdivision Application, Preliminary Plat, and Plans for 44 Central Avenue and 
have been found to comply with the Town’s subdivision ordinance as it relates to a major subdivisions 
and other sections of code which are applicable. The Planning and Zoning Board have reviewed the 
same documents and unanimously recommended for your consideration.   

Councilman Penley made a motion to approve the aforementioned Major Subdivision commonly known 
as 44 Central Avenue. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the motion. The motion passed by a 
unanimous vote of Council. 

F. Update on Table of Uses 

Town Planner James Eller mentioned that on November 1, 2016, Town Council made the decision for 
staff of the Planning and Zoning Board to work on the Table of Uses be implemented into the zoning 
code. After approximately 18 hours and 11 meetings, the Planning and Zoning Board has an updated 
Table of Uses that they would like to present to Town Council.  As a reminder, Town Council has 
scheduled a special called meeting with the Planning and Zoning Board for Tuesday, June 27, 2017 at 
6pm at the Fire Department Training Room, to begin discussions of the substance of the proposed Table 
of Uses.  

 

7



 

 
Page 4 of 4  June 19, 2017  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

7. Employee Recognition and Town Manager’s Report 
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey recognized James Eller on finishing his Zoning Administrator 
Certification process at the School of Government and Trent Duncan and his department for being 
awarded an Area Wide Optimization Award. 
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey presented her Manager’s Report to Council including the Citizens 
Academy Graduation is next month on July 20, 2017, Ms. Coffey will be at a Managers Conference in 
Concord, NC from June 21-23, 2017, plans for the July 4th event are finished and will go along as 
scheduled, and she has spoken with County Manager Wanda Greene and asked her not to have the Dry 
Ridge Museum move, but if we have to move out of the library, please give us more time. Town 
Manager Selena Coffey reminded Town Council that the Weaverville Business Association will have 
their Music on Main event this Friday, June 23, 2017 and the roads will begin to close around 1pm. She 
asked Town Council if they would like to keep the Town Hall open or close it, since the road will be 
closed and the parking lot will not be accessible.  
 

8. Closed Session 
 
Councilman Penley made the motion to enter closed session as per N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(3) 
to consult with an attorney, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(5) to establish or instruct staff concerning 
the position to be taken on the acquisition of real property and the amount of compensation and other 
material terms of an employment contract, and N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(6) to consider the 
qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of appointment, of conditions of 
employment of a public officer or employee, or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge or grievance. 
Councilman Dearth seconded the motion and by a unanimous vote Council entered into closed session. 
 
[CLOSED SESSION] 
 
Councilman Dearth  made the motion to exit closed session. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded and all 
voted unanimously to exit closed session and re-enter open session. 
 

9. Adjournment 
Councilman Dearth made the motion to adjourn; Councilman Nagle seconded and all voted to adjourn 
the Council’s meeting at 7:50 p.m. 
 

__________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

8



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  July 17, 2017  

Subject:   Road Closure Ordinances:  

Presenter:   Selena D. Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:   Road Closure Ordinances 

• North Buncombe High School Parade  
• Art in Autumn 
• Christmas Parade   

 

 

Description: 

Attached please find the Ordinances for the road closures for each respective event. 
 

 

 

 

Council Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends approval of all three ordinances. 

 

 Suggested Motion: 
 I move to approve the road closure ordinances for the North Buncombe High School 
 Parade, Art in Autumn, and the Christmas Parade. 

 

9



Weaverville 

North Carolina 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A ROAD CLOSURE FOR THE 

NORTH BUNCOMBE HOMECOMING PARADE 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges a long tradition of supporting the 
annual North Buncombe Homecoming Parade, that benefits the Weaverville and the North 
Buncombe community; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges a long tradition of providing the North 
Buncombe Homecoming Parade for the pleasure of its citizens; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges the North Buncombe Homecoming 
Parade celebration requires approximately one (1) hour to install signage, and also requires 
approximately one (1) hour for removing signage, litter, etc. 

NO THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Weaverville pursuant to the authority 
granted by G. S. 20-169, that we do hereby declare a temporary road closure on the day and 
times set forth below and the following described portion of a State Highway System route: 

North Buncombe Homecoming Parade

Date: 

Time: 

Road Closure: 

October 06, 2017

4:30 pm until 5:30 pm 

North Buncombe School Road 
North Main Street 
South Main Street 

This ordinance to become effective when signs are erected giving notice of the road closures and 
detour routes, the implementation of adequate traffic control. 

Adopted this ______ day of , 

L 

Dottie Sherrill, Mayor 

Attest: 

10



Weaverville  
North Carolina 

 
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A ROAD CLOSURE FOR THE  

Weaverville Art in Autumn Festival 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges a long tradition of supporting the 
annual Weaverville Art in Autumn Festival, that benefits the Weaverville and the North 
Buncombe community; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges a long tradition of providing the 
Weaverville Art in Autumn Festival for the pleasure of its citizens; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges the Weaverville Art in Autumn 
requires approximately two (2) hours to install signage, and also requires approximately one (1) 
hour for removing signage, litter, etc. 
 
WHEREAS, The Town Council of Weaverville recognizes that the detour route will be 
appropriately marked with signage and personnel at various locations to ensure the motoring 
public travels safely and without unnecessary delay. 
 

NO THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Weaverville pursuant to the authority 
granted by G. S. 20-169, that we do hereby declare a temporary road closure on the day and 
times set forth below and the following described portion of a State Highway System route: 
 

 Weaverville Art in Autumn 
  

 Date:    September 16, 2017 
 

 Time:   5:00 am until 8:00 pm    
 

Road Closure: The portion of Main Street between Church Street and Brown 
Street will be closed and all traffic safely detoured around this 
area. 

  
 

This ordinance to become effective when signs are erected giving notice of the road closures and 
detour routes, the implementation of adequate traffic control.  
 
 
    Adopted this _____ day of ________________, 2017 
 
    __________________________________________ 
    Dottie Sherrill, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________________ 
Town Clerk 

11



Town of Weaverville 
North Carolina 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A ROAD CLOSURE FOR THE 
WEAVERVILLE CHRISTMAS PARADE  

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges a long tradition of supporting the annual 
Weaverville Christmas Parade, that benefits the Weaverville and the North Buncombe community; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges a long tradition of providing the Weaverville 
Christmas Parade for the pleasure of its citizens; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges the Weaverville Christmas Parade celebration 
requires approximately one half hour to install signage, approximately one hour fifteen minutes for 
parade event, and also requires approximately one half hour for removing signage, litter, etc. 

NO THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Weaverville pursuant to the authority 
granted by G. S. 20-169, that we do hereby declare a temporary road closure on the day and times set 
forth below and the following described portion of a State Highway System route: 

Weaverville Christmas Parade 

Date: 

Begin time: 
End time: 

December 2, 2017 

1:00 pm 
3:15pm 

Description of closure: 1.91 miles along SR2207, US 19 Bus, and SR2127 Main Street  from North 
Buncombe Middle School to Weaverville Elementary School / Yost Street 

This ordinance to become effective when signs are erected giving notice of the road closures and detour 
routes and the implementation of adequate traffic control.  

 

______________________________________ 
Dottie Sherrill, Mayor 

Attest: 

_________________________________________ 
Selena D. Coffey, Town Manager  

12



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: July 17, 2017  

Subject: Quarterly Reports 

Presenter:  Selena D. Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:  Departmental Reports: 

• Police Department
• Fire Department
• Public Works
• Zoning
• Finance – Not yet available due to auditors 

Description: 

Attached please find departmental quarterly reports. 

Council Action Requested: 

No action required. 

13



14



15



Weaverville Fire Department
First Quarter 2017 Activites

Fire Inside City Property Loss Outside City Property Loss
Brush / Woods 3 0 5 0
Vehicle 2 1,400 1 0
Structure 2 15,000 5 40,300
Investigation 14 0 27 0
Haz-mat Incident 1 0 4 0
Mutual Aid 0 0 50 0
Fire Alarm Activation 16 0 9 0
Public Assistance 7 0 12 0
TOTAL (Fire) 45 16,400 113 40,300

Rescue
MVA \ MCA 13 0 25 0
EMS \ FR \ Rescue 122 0 133 0
Mutual Aid 0 0 2 0
Search 0 0 0 0
TOTAL (Rescue) 135 0 160 0

    
TOTAL Fire & Rescue 180 16,400 273 40,300

Remarks: Total Fire\Rescue Alarms:  453
Total Fire Loss:  $56,700 Total Saved: 384,400
Total Inspections:   57

 

Date:7/10/2017 TW

16



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE PUBLIC WORKS ACTIVITY SHEET

WATER MAINTENANCE:

Water Leaks Repaired 7

New Water Taps 27

Water Quality Complaints 2

Meter Re-Read Service Calls 95

General Service Calls 228

Water Door Tags Delivered 65

Water Line Locate Utility Service Calls 447

Water Meter Change Outs to Radio Read 45

Reservoir-Pump Station Site Checks  455

Water Line Construction Site Supervision/Inspections:  Creekside Village
Maple Trace
Monticello Apartments
ASPCA
North Asheville Baptist

12 of the 50 OUTSIDE RESIDENTIAL METER TAPS HAVE BEEN APPROVED

WEAVERVILLE WATER PRODUCTION:

1.  Water Treatment Plant 50,508,000 GALLONS

2.  Water Purchased from Asheville 0 GALLONS

A.  TOTAL WATER PRODUCTION (1+2) 50,508,000 GALLONS

B.  TOTAL METERED FOR BILLING 38,691,500 GALLONS

C.  Metered and Non-Metered/Non-Billed Use 8,663,000 GALLONS

D.  Total Accounted For Water (B+C) 47,354,500 GALLONS

E.  TOTAL UNACCOUNTED (A-D) 3,153,500 GALLONS

2nd  Quarter 2017

17



WEAVERVILLE WATER DEPARTMENT CAPACITY VS PRODUCTION:

WATER PLANT DESIGN CAPACITY: 1,500,000 GALLONS PER DAY
NET SALABLE PRODUCTION CAPACITY: 1,300,000 GALLONS PER DAY

NET SALABLE PRODUCTION CAPACITY: 1,300,000 GALLONS PER DAY
QUARTERLY AVG DAILY PRODUCTION: 555,068 GALLONS PER DAY

AVERAGE USE AS A PERCENTAGE OF CAPACITY 42.7 %

UNACCOUNTED FOR RUNNING ANNUAL AVERAGE:

1. Finished Water Pumped to System 198,347,000 GALLONS

2. Unaccounted for Water 17,050,357 GALLONS 

3. Unaccounted for Water as a Percentage 8.6 %

STREET MAINTENANCE:

Street Work Orders Completed 6

Paving Projects postponed until spring of 2017 due to the timing of revised contract.

SANITATION Garbage Collection Points:

Residential Collections Points 22,319

Business Pick Ups 711

Residential Set-Outs 642

TOTAL 23,672

Total Tons to Landfill 347.44

Average Pounds Per Collection Point 29.36

Cubic Yards - Yard Debris 92

Cubic Yards - Brush Chipped 530

Cubic Yards - Leaf Collection 54

18



PARKS AND RECREATION FACILITY MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT:

P&R Projects/Repairs Completed 6

19



 

Planning Department Report – Q2, 2017 
 

Total Zoning Permits Issued: 25 
 
Residential: 
Single family dwellings: 9 
Internal upfit or auxiliary structure: 8 
 
Commercial: 
New Commercial: 1 (Hardees) 
Internal upfit: 6 
Telecommunication Tower Collocation: 1 
 
Sign Permits: 3 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

20



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER:  

ATTACHMENTS: 

July 17, 2017  

Tax Releases and Refunds  - Amended

Town Finance Director 

Buncombe County Letter dated July 13, 2017 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Last month the Tax Collector reported that Buncombe County has just settled an appeal 
from Lowes Home Centers, Inc., for its property at 24 Northridge Commons Parkway (PIN 
9733-80-6106). This appeal settlement has resulted in a lowering of Lowes' property 
valuation for 2015 and 2016 and Buncombe County has processed appropriate tax releases 
and refunds and Town Council approved corresponding tax releases and refunds as 
follows: (a) release of $462,900 from the valuation of PIN 9733-80-6106 for 2015 and 
2016; and (b) refunds of $1,944.18 for 2015 and $2,036.76 for 2016, totaling $3,980.94. 

Buncombe County failed to fully report the released amount to the Tax Collector. The 
attached letter from Buncombe County indicates that the amount of the release on the 
above-mentioned parcel is actually $873,600, not $462,900 as previously reported. The 
corresponding refund of Town taxes based on that adjustment to valuation is $3,669.12 for 
2015 and $3,843.84 for 2016 (refund totaling $7,512.96).  

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Town Council is requested to amend the tax release and refund on the Lowes Home 
Centers, Inc. parcel based on the corrected release information received from Buncombe 
County. This action could be in the form of the following motion:  

I move that the tax release and refund approved at Town Council's June 19, 
2017, meeting be amended such that $873,600 in valuation be released from 
PIN 9733-80-6106 for 2015 and 2016 and that a total of $7,512.96 be refunded 
to Lowes Home Centers, Inc. 

21



22



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  July 17, 2017   

SUBJECT: Receipt of Certificate of Sufficiency on Voluntary Annexation Petition 
submitted by Shakamar Investment Group, LLC, and R-2 Zoning 
Request and Setting Public Hearing for August 21, 2017 at 6pm  

PRESENTER:   Town Manager/Clerk 

ATTACHMENTS: Certificate of Sufficiency and Voluntary Annexation Petition for 
Shakamar Investment Group, LLC, and Initial Zoning Request of R-2 

 
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

In May 2017 the Town received a voluntary annexation petition for a +/-8 acre parcel of land under 
single ownership wishing to come into the Town’s municipal boundaries. Town Council received 
this petition and on June 19, 2017, directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency of the 
petition. This investigation involves making certain that the petition has been signed by the actual 
property owner. The Town Clerk has made his investigation and as indicated on the attached 
Certificates of Sufficiency finds that it is both sufficient and proper for annexation of contiguous 
property under NCGS 160A-31. The Town Council also asked that the Planning and Zoning Board 
review the initial zoning request and that review was conducted on July 6, 2017. The favorable 
recommendation concerning the request R-2 zoning will be available for consideration at the public 
hearing that is to be set on the matter. 

Town Council is now asked to set a public hearing for August 21, 2017, in order to receive public 
comment on the proposed annexation and initial zoning request.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

If Council would like to proceed with consideration of the annexation petition it would be 
appropriate to schedule the public hearing on the annexation and the initial R-2 zoning. 

If the Board is so inclined, the following motion is suggested: 

I move that a public hearing be scheduled before Town Council on August 21, 2017 at 6pm 
for the Voluntary Annexation Petition submitted by Shakamar Investment Group, LLC, and 
the application for an initial zoning designation for the property to R-2. 

23



24



2025



2126



2227



2328



2429



2530



Sh
ak

am
ar 

An
ne

xa
tio

n A
rea

So
urc

es
: E

sri
, H

ER
E,

 D
eL

orm
e, 

US
GS

, I
nte

rm
ap

, IN
CR

EM
EN

T 
P, 

NR
Ca

n,
Es

ri J
ap

an
, M

ET
I, E

sri
 C

hin
a (

Ho
ng

 K
on

g),
 E

sri
 K

ore
a, 

Es
ri (

Th
ail

an
d),

Ju
ne

 13
, 2

01
7

0
0.0

75
0.1

5
0.0

37
5

mi

0
0.1

0.2
0.0

5
km

1:4
,51

4

1931



32



2633



2734



35



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments:  

July 17, 2017  

NCLM Report Regarding Police Department Review

Tom Anderson, NCLM

None  

Description: 
In 2013, the North Carolina League of Municipalities Risk Management Services formed a Chiefs’ 
Advisory Committee that includes police chiefs from agencies across N.C.  The committee members 
worked to analyze insurance and liability concerns impacting North Carolina law enforcement 
agencies who participate in our insurance pools. In response to these liability concerns, the chiefs 
developed a risk management review to assist in the identification and mitigation of high liability 
activities found in police operations.

The purpose for this instrument is to assess an agency’s adherence to best practices, court 
decisions, and policies and procedures related to high liability activities in law enforcement. The 
goal is to mitigate liability exposures, enhance officer safety, and validate that training and 
operating procedures are meeting industry standards. The risk management review was designed 
and peer-reviewed by a panel of police chiefs representing a cross section of N.C. law enforcement 
agencies and is available to those agencies who participate in the League’s property and liability 
insurance pool. 

The Weaverville Police just finished the risk review process which began several months ago at the 
request of Police Chief Greg Stephens. 

Tom Anderson, North Carolina League of Municipalities, will be present to discuss his recent 
review regarding the Weaverville Police Department audit. 

Council Action Request:
 No action necessary.

36



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

DATE OF MEETING:  July 17, 2017  

SUBJECT: Ordinance Authorized by the Brunch Bill 
  
PRESENTER:   Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS:  Proposed Ordinance 
 

DESCRIPTION: 

The North Carolina Legislature has recently amended North Carolina law by enacting 
N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-205.3, which permits a municipality to adopt an ordinance 
allowing for the sale of malt beverages, unfortified wine, fortified wine, and mixed 
beverages beginning at 10:00 a.m. on Sunday pursuant to the licensed premises’ permit 
issued under N.C.G.S. § 18B-1001. This legislation has been commonly referred to as the 
Brunch Bill. 

The proposed Ordinance, if adopted by Town Council, would allow malt beverages, 
unfortified wine, fortified wine and mixed beverages to be sold at properly permitted 
premises within the Town of Weaverville on Sundays beginning at 10 a.m.  

This Ordinance could be effective immediately upon adoption tonight with at least a 
2/3 affirmative vote. 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council could take action to adopt the proposed ordinance.  

37



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
ORDINANCE CONCERNING HOURS OF CERTAIN SUNDAY ALCOHOL SALES 

WHEREAS, the General Assembly has pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 18B-1004(c) made it 
unlawful to sell or consume alcoholic beverages on any licensed premises from the time at 
which sale or consumption must cease on Sunday morning until 12:00 noon on that day; 
and 

WHEREAS, the General Assembly has, since the adoption of the aforementioned 
prohibition, enacted N.C.G.S. § 160A-205.3, permitting a municipality to adopt an ordinance 
allowing for the sale of malt beverages, unfortified wine, fortified wine, and mixed 
beverages beginning at 10:00 a.m. on Sunday pursuant to the licensed premises’ permit 
issued under N.C.G.S. § 18B-1001; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council considers it to be in the best interest of the health, 
safety and welfare of the Town’s residents, businesses and visitors to allow licensed 
premises to sell malt beverages, unfortified wine, fortified wine, and mixed beverages 
beginning at 10:00 a.m. on Sunday, 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Weaverville: 

SECTION 1.  The following language shall be added as § 16-7 to Town Code: 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE RETAIL SALES ON SUNDAY – HOURS. In accordance with the 
authority granted under N.C.G.S. § 160A-205.3, the Weaverville Town Council hereby 
declares that sale of malt beverages, unfortified wine, fortified wine, and mixed beverages 
shall be allowed on licensed premises within the Town beginning at 10:00 a.m. on Sunday 
pursuant to the licensed premises’ permit issued under N.C.G.S. § 18B-1001.

SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this ordinance. 

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from 
and after the date of its adoption. 

ADOPTED this the 17th day of July 2017 by a vote of ____ in favor and ____ against. 

___________________________________________ 
DOTTIE SHERRILL, Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

___________________________________________ 
DEREK HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

DATE OF MEETING:  July 17, 2017  

SUBJECT: Eller Cove Watershed Conservation Easement Transfer 
  
PRESENTER:   Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS:  None 
 

DESCRIPTION: 

The Eller Cove Watershed project came to a long-awaited conclusion on Thursday, July 
13, 2017, with the Town's transfer of the Eller Cove Watershed conservation area. The 
Town received $550,000 on July 13th for conveying the conservation easement which 
will ensure the preservation of over 300 acres for hiking, biking and wildlife viewing. 
This could not have happened without grants from the North Carolina Clean Water 
Management Trust Fund and the Southern Appalachian Highlands Conservancy. That 
generosity in protecting this area is greatly appreciated as it will benefit the Town and 
this region for many years to come.  
 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

The $550,000 received by the Town as sale proceeds will be reflected as revenue in this 
year's budget. Town Council is asked to discuss and given direction to the Town 
Manager on any desired use of these funds so the appropriate budget amendment can 
be prepared for Council's consideration. 

 

69


	July 17 2017 agenda
	Budget Workshop Minutes 06-01-2017
	Town Council Minutes 06-19-2017
	Road Closure Ordinances July 12 2017 Agenda Item
	art in autumn ordinance 2017
	CHRISTMAS PARADE ORDINANCE 2017
	Homecoming Parade 2017 Ordinance

	June 19 2017 Dept Quarterly Reports Agenda Item
	PD Quarterly report July 2017
	FD CRSecondQtr2017
	Public Works Dept Quarterly Report
	Planning and Zoning Dept Quarterly Report

	Tax Releases and Refunds - Amended
	Receipt of Certificate of Sufficiency of Shakamar Annexation and Setting PH
	NCLM-WPD Agenda Item
	Ordinance Authorized by the Brunch Bill
	Monticello Commons CZD Application
	Table of Uses - Set date of public hearing and announce schedule of meetings
	Eller Cove Watershed Conservation Easement Transfer - July 2017



